

DRAFT

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES OF THE SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSION

These rules are made pursuant to Section 17-53-207 of the Utah Code. A certified copy of these Policies and Procedures and any subsequent amendments shall be filed with the County Clerk to be kept as a permanent public record. The County Clerk shall also cause these Policies and Procedures to be posted on the San Juan County official website. The current edition of Robert's Rules of Order that is provided by the County Administrator will be referenced as a guideline in cases not covered by State Code or these Polices and Procedures ~~by laws~~.

A. Definitions

1. Chair/Presiding Officer: Means the person elected or appointed as Chair of the County Commission.
2. County Commission: Means the persons elected and sworn to the Commission, who have not been removed from office for any reason, acting collectively in a duly called meeting of the Commission where a quorum is present.
3. Governing Body: Means the current County Commission acting collectively in a duly called meeting of the Commission where a quorum is present.
4. Majority Vote of Governing Body: Means two (2) Commission Members' affirmative votes.
5. Commissioner/ Commission Member/Commission Representative/Member: Means the individual Commission Members acting individually.
6. Membership: Means the Commission Members.
7. Official Action: Means a written resolution of the Commission adopted by a majority vote in a duly called meeting of the Commission where a quorum is present. All statements of an official position of the County and all documents stating such a position must be approved through an Official Action.
8. Quorum: Means the minimum number of persons required to act as a Governing Body. A quorum requires two (2) Commission Members who must be present in person at the meeting location. Additional Members may attend by phone or other real-time means so long as an Electronic Meetings Resolution is enacted stating same. A quorum may not convene in violation of the Open and Public Meetings Act (U.C.A. 52-4-103(11)).
9. Vice-Chair: Means a Commissioner elected or appointed by the Governing Body to act as Chairperson/Presiding Officer, with all the powers of the Chairperson as defined in these

bylaws, in the absence or disability of the Chair. The Vice-Chair's authority exists for the period of appointment of the Commissioner as Vice-Chair, rather than for a specific time period, such as a single Commission meeting.

10. Chair Pro-Tem: Means a Commissioner selected by the Governing Body as Chair in the absence or disability of the Chair and Vice Chair. A Chair Pro-tem's authority exists for the duration of a specific time period, typically a specific Commission meeting. This may also mean a Commissioner selected by the Chair in those instances when the Chair wishes to step down temporarily in order to sponsor a motion.
11. Official County Commission Business: Means matters that have been formally acted upon or authorized by the Commission in a duly called meeting of the Commission where a quorum is present.
12. Commission Officers: Means the Commission Chair and Vice-Chair.

B. Commission Members

1. Appointment of the Officers: The Commission shall elect or appoint the Chair and the Vice Chair at its first meeting in January.
2. Commission Meeting Attendance: Commissioners are required to attend all regularly scheduled and special Commission Meetings. If an event arises that prevents attendance of a Commission Meeting, the County Administrator should be notified in advance of the meeting.
3. Participation in Local, State or Federal Committees: Commissioners are encouraged to participate in other local, tribal^[1], state and federal committees and associations and inform the Commission accordingly.
4. County Commission Documents: The official San Juan County letterhead, which includes the San Juan County logo and names and titles of current officers/Commissioners, shall be used only for official County Commission business.
5. Commission Communications: Commissioners ~~may state, including the Officers, purport to give~~ an official position of San Juan County ~~when in written or verbal communication without specific prior approval from the Commission through an official action of the Commission taken in a duly called meeting of the Commission where a quorum is present unless~~ the Commission has previously adopted that taken an official position through an official action on the matter. Commissioners shall clearly distinguish and keep separate their personal opinions from the official positions of the Commission in the course of the discharge of their duties. This ~~shall in no way be construed to does not~~ prohibit the expression of an opinion, advocacy for a position, or expression of disagreement in the course of one's duties as a Commissioner.

6. Electronic Communication: Commissioners are encouraged to be mindful in their electronic communications that any electronic communications among two or more Commissioners are subject to GRAMA, the State’s Government Records Access and Management Act. GRAMA gives “every person the right to inspect a public record” (UCA 63G-2-201(1)). It defines a public record as “public unless otherwise expressly provided by statute” (UCA 63G-2-201(2)). Exceptions are, according to UCA 63G-2-202, “a record that is private, controlled, or protected” under State Code.

Furthermore, the State’s Open and Public Meetings Act defines an electronic message as “a communication transmitted electronically including: electronic mail, instant messaging, electronic chat, text messaging, or any other method that conveys a message or facilitates communication electronically” (UCA 52-4-103(5)(a)).

The Open Meetings Act specifically states that the Act does not preclude “members of a public body” from transmitting “an electronic message to other members of the public body at a time when the public body is not convened in an open meeting” (UCA 52-4-210).

7. Commission E-mail and Communication Policy:

- a. Each Commission Member will be given a unique email address, and all email addressed to an individual Commissioner or the Commission will be forwarded as received.
- b. In order to reduce duplicate emails, listserv emails from the organizations listed below will not be forwarded; instead Commission staff shall check at least annually to insure that all Commissioners are on the direct distribution lists for:
 - i. UAC (Utah Association of Counties);
 - ii. NACo (National Association of Counties);
 - iii. CCP (Canyon Country Partnership); and
 - iv. Any other organization requested by a Commissioner.
- c. Surface mail addressed to a specific Commissioner is to be placed in that Commissioner’s box when received.

8. Municipal Building Authority and Board of Equalization: Commissioners shall serve as the Municipal Building Authority as required for capital projects and shall serve as the local Board of Equalization as required for property tax assessment matters.

9. County Board/Commission/Committee and Local and Special Service District Board Representation: All County Boards, Commissions, and Committees and Local and Special Service District Boards may include one Commissioner representative either as a voting or ex-officio member according to the Board/Commission’s enabling ordinance

unless otherwise prohibited by law. County Committees shall include a Commissioner representative, if required, according to the Committee's enabling resolution.

C. Commissioners' Participation on County Boards, Commissions & Committees and Local & Special Service District Boards

1. Assignments to County Boards, Commissions & Committees and Local & Special Service District Boards: In January of each year the Commission shall review each Commission Representative position to County Boards, Commissions and Committees, and Local and Special Service District Boards, and other agencies. Commissioners shall indicate which assignments they would prefer. For assignments selected by more than one Commissioner, the Commission shall vote on who receives the assignment. In the event that no Commissioner volunteers for an assignment, the Chair shall assign a Commissioner.
2. Commissioners' Role: Commissioners assigned to serve on County Boards, Commissions, ~~and~~ Committees, and ~~Local and~~ Special Service District or other agency Boards shall serve as the liaison to the Commission, whether a voting member per enabling documents or not. As a Board Member, a Commissioner may have a fiduciary duty to the Board that may be in conflict with their duties as a Commissioner, in which case they should declare the conflict and determine whether it warrants recusal from the Board's deliberations and decision. Commissioners shall represent the Commission but cannot commit the County on any matter without first obtaining approval through an official action of the Commission.
3. Boards/Commissions/Committees/Agencies Reporting to the Commission: Commission Representatives to boards, commissions, committees, and agencies shall regularly report to the Commission during a Commission meeting and when action is required.
4. Commissioner Participation: Commissioners who are not assigned as representatives are encouraged to attend any Board, Commission, or Committee meeting for informational purposes and shall notify the Commission Representative of their interest to attend. Commissioners not assigned as Commission Representatives attending these meetings shall participate as members of the public.
5. Special Service District Boards: In accordance with (UCA §17D, Chapter 1) the Commission may establish Special Service District ("District") Boards. These Boards are independent of the County except that the Commission shall, pursuant to UCA Section 17D-1-303, make all appointments to such Administrative Control Boards except for District Boards elected by the public and where otherwise established in the organization's bylaws or enabling documents. Each District Board shall include one Commissioner representative as appointed or assigned by the Commission to serve the term established by the District bylaws. All business conducted by the District Board shall be independent of the County ~~with the exception of the involvement of the~~

Commission Representative. Joint meetings of the Commission Membership and the District Boards are encouraged for the purpose of establishing common goals and objectives. However, the County Commission will not direct or attempt to direct the decisions of the Special District Boards.

6. Attendance: Commission Members are ~~expected~~required to attend all regularly scheduled and special Board, Commission, and Committee meetings to which they are assigned. If regular attendance at an assigned Board, Commission, or Committee meeting is not possible, the Commissioner will make arrangements for a re-appointment for that assignment.

D. Duties of the Chair and Vice-Chair

1. The Chair: The Chair (and each of the Vice-Chair and Chair Pro-Tem acting as Chair) shall have no veto power over official actions and no special substantive authority. The Chair is responsible for setting the Commission Agenda, facilitating Commission Meetings, and signing the Commission-approved documents. The Chair does not act on behalf of the Commission unless directed by the majority of the Commission Members through an official action and is subject to all of the provisions of Section B of these ~~Rules of Procedure~~bylaws. Additionally, the Chair provides guidance to the County Administrator while the Commission as a unit through official actions provides specific direction. Any Commissioner may provide advice and guidance to the County Administrator at any time.
2. Presiding Officer: The Chair shall be the Presiding Officer at all meetings and hearings of the Commission.
3. Vice-Chair: In the event of absence or disability of the Chair, the Vice-Chair shall preside. Upon the Chair's request, the Vice-Chair shall assist with the discharge of any of the Chair's duties.
4. Chair Pro-Tem: The Commissioners may appoint a Chair Pro-Tem by majority vote of the Commission or consensus.
5. Study Committees: The Chair may, at his/her discretion, oversee the membership and proper functioning of the Commission Study Committees, whether or not a designated committee member.
6. Control of Chambers: The Chair shall have control of the Commission Chambers. The Chair shall maintain order and may eject any member of the public who behaves in a disorderly manner.
7. Points of Order: The Chair shall decide all points of order and procedure, subject to

appeal of membership. The Chair may vote on all matters but may not make motions.

8. Roll Call Vote: All matters involving expenditure of funds require a roll call vote.
9. Declare Votes: Motions may be determined by voice vote, show of hands or, at the request of any member, by roll call. The Chair shall declare all votes.
10. Sign Documents, Contracts and Agreements: The Chair shall sign resolutions, ordinances, and all other documents issued by the Commission. The Chair shall sign all contracts and agreements approved by Commission, including “all associated documents” included in motions. The Chair may delegate such signatory authority to the Vice-Chair as per Section D.1., or when appropriate, the Chair Pro-Tem. The Chair, in his or her sole discretion, may consult with the County Administrator and the County Attorney for review of the above documents.
11. Training on Open and Public Meetings Act: The Chair shall ensure that all Commissioners are provided with the opportunity for annual trainings of the Open and Public Meetings Act, UCA §52-4-104.
12. Voting Rights and Authority: The Chair, Vice-Chair and Chair Pro-Tem shall have the same rights to debate and vote in the Commission as any other Commission Member. The Chair ~~may shall not make or~~ second motions. If the Chair wishes to make a motion, they shall temporarily transfer the responsibilities of the Chair to another Commissioner, make their motion, and then once the matter is concluded, receive back the Chair responsibilities. Nothing in this section shall be construed as restricting the Chair’s ability to fully participate in the legislative process., and may make motions of any kind if the Chairpersonship is temporarily transferred to another Commissioner., shall not make motions to amend, or make substitute motions.

E. The County Administrator

1. Direction Received: The County Administrator acts under the direction of policies adopted by the Commission through an official action and in accordance with the provisions of the County Administrator’s current Job Description. Specific direction is received from the Commission acting pursuant to an official action. Day to day guidance, as needed, is received from the Chair in accordance with directives contained in official actions.
2. Prepares Agenda: The County Administrator shall develop and publish copies of the Commission Agenda in accordance with these Policies and Procedures. (See Section K.)
3. Attends Meetings: The County Administrator shall attend all Commission meetings unless excused by the Commission or Chair, and, in the absence of Department Heads who report to the Administrator, may speak on their behalf.

4. Study Committee: The County Administrator may attend, if invited by the Chair or the Committee, and participate in Study Committee Meetings.
5. Matters Continued: The County Administrator shall ensure that action items on the agenda that are tabled or postponed shall be continued upon the agenda of subsequent meetings until disposed of by the Commission. The County Administrator shall ensure that such items shall be automatically added to the agenda of subsequent meetings until acted upon or permanently deleted by a majority vote of the Commission.
6. Signing of Documents: The County Administrator shall sign agreements, permits, and contracts on behalf of the County Commission when so delegated by an official action of the Commission. The Administrator will be responsible to provide the original signed documents to the County Clerk.
7. Furnish Rules: The County Administrator shall furnish all Commissioners with copies of Robert's Rules of Order, the link to County Land Use Code and General Plan, and the Policies and Procedures of the Governing Body, Bylaws of County Boards, Commissions, and Committees, Policies and Procedures of County Departments, and any other administrative documents upon request.
8. Written Comments: Any written comments from the public regarding Commission action or public hearings shall be compiled by the Commission Administrator's Office, included in the agenda packet for the public hearing, and forwarded to the Clerk/Auditor's Office once the hearing is closed and action taken by the Commission.

F. The County Clerk

1. Meetings: The Clerk or deputy is expected to attend all Commission meetings and shall attest all instruments signed by the Chair, including resolutions and ordinances.
2. Notices: In collaboration with the County Administrator, the County Clerk ensures that all required notices are posted or published as required by the Open and Public Meetings Act and that all notices include the date, time and name or initials of the person posting the notice.

The Commission, or their agent, is responsible for providing in a timely manner to the clerk all information required for posting the necessary notices under the Open and Public Meetings Act.

3. Minutes: The Clerk or deputy prepares and maintains minutes and recordings of the proceedings, including closed sessions, as required by U.C.A. 52-4-206~~appropriate, and such journals and records as required~~. Minutes shall be posted on the County website once approved and shall include the following:

- a. the date, time and place of the meeting;
- b. the names of Commissioners present and absent;
- c. the substance of all matters proposed, discussed, or decided by the Commission which may include a summary of comments made by Commissioners;
- d. a record, by individual member, or each vote taken by the Commission;
- e. the name of each person who:
 - i. is not a Commissioner; and
 - ii. after being recognized by the Commission Chair, provided testimony or comments to the Commission;
- f. the substance, in brief, of the testimony or comments provided by the public; and
- g. any other information that is a record of the proceedings of the meeting that any ~~participant~~~~Commissioner~~ requests be entered in the minutes or recordings.

G. The County Attorney

- 1. Meeting Attendance: The County Attorney shall attend meetings and hearings of the county legislative body as necessary. (U.C.A. 17-18a-501(5)).
- 2. Legal Analysis by County Attorney: When requested, the County Attorney will provide a ~~full and detailed~~ written legal analysis of any action item on the Commission agenda in the manner described in these Policies and Procedures.
- 3. Approving as to form and legality: The County Attorney shall review and approve as to form and legality each county contract, ordinance, regulation, real estate document, conveyance, and legal document. (U.C.A. 17-18a-504)
- 4. Legal Counsel: The County Attorney shall act as the legal advisor to the county and the County Commission in their official capacity as County Commissioners (U.C.A. 17-18a-501(4)).
- 5. Attorney/Client Relationship: The Commission, through official actions, may direct the County Attorney as to any legal matter where a client would ordinarily be able to direct the actions of the client's attorney. In any instance where the County Attorney fails to carry out the lawful directive of the Commission as stated in an official action, the Chair may take action to report that failure to appropriate officials or entities if so authorized by a majority vote of the Commission.

H. Commission Meetings

- 1. Open and Public Meetings Act: All Commission Meetings, including Special Meetings, Emergency Meetings and Workshops, shall be in compliance with the Open and Public Meetings Act, UCA Title 52 Chapter 4. All Commission Meetings will be open to the

public. Any closed sessions shall be in accordance with UCA 52-4-204.

2. Approval of Annual Schedule of Meetings: The Commission shall approve its annual meeting schedule during the December scheduled meeting and publish the approved schedule in accordance with UCA 52-4-202.
3. Commission Meeting Dates and Times: The Commission shall hold regular meetings the first and third Tuesday of each month. In those months when the holidays or elections fall on the first or third Tuesday, the meeting shall be held the following day. To the extent practicable and if so required as determined by the Chair, Commission meetings will begin at 9:00 a.m. Public hearings to adopt or change a budget or to consider matters related to taxes or fees shall begin at 6:00 p.m. or later. Where practicable, in compliance with Resolution 2019-07, Commission meetings shall be live-streamed and publicly broadcast in real time.
4. Special and Emergency Meetings: The Chair or the Commission by majority vote may call a special meeting or an emergency meeting in accordance with the Utah Open and Public Meetings Act as becomes necessary.
5. Recess and Adjournment:
 - a. Commission meetings shall be adjourned by a majority vote and no further business may be conducted once a motion to adjourn has been adopted. A motion to adjourn takes precedence over all other motions, including pending motions.
 - b. The Commission may recess a meeting by a majority vote and this motion, if approved, has the effect of temporarily suspending the meeting. A motion to recess that extends the meeting past the current day has the effect of an adjournment.
 - c. The Commission may recess a meeting in order to convene itself as another entity of the County, such as a board or commission. Once the business of the board or commission is completed, the Chair Commission may end the recess by majority vote and reconvene the Commission to complete the business stated on the approved Commission agenda.

I. Agenda

1. Order of Business: The County Administrator's office shall prepare, and the Chair shall approve, a written agenda for each meeting. The order of business for Commission agendas will typically contain a section entitled "Work Meeting", during which reports are presented and items are briefed and discussed but not voted on; and a section entitled "Formal Meeting", during which the Commission deliberates and votes on various matters.
2. Agenda Management and Preparation:

- a. Items proposed for inclusion in the agenda must be delivered to the County Administrator's office, in person or electronically, by not later than noon on the Thursday before the Commission meeting that they are to be included on the agenda. No item shall be accepted after that time, except as specifically stated in these Policies and Procedures.
 - b. Requests for inclusion on an agenda and supporting documentation must be received by 5 PM on the Wednesday prior to a Regular Meeting and forty-eight (48) hours prior to any Special Meeting. The County Administrator may extend this deadline when staff time permits so long as the final agenda is set by the Chair.
 - c. Proposed agenda items must be accompanied by all documents reasonably necessary for a clear understanding of the item by the Commission. For example, if a proposed resolution references a lease or a contract, the referenced documents must be included with the agenda item. The County Administrator shall reject all proposed agenda items that do not comply with this requirement.
 - e.d. These requirements may be waived for an item related to an emergency matter.
3. Legal Review: All agenda items shall be submitted for legal review by the County Attorney when they are first received by the County Administrator unless already reviewed by the County Attorney prior to sending to the County Administrator.
- a. The County Attorney shall provide a written legal review of each agenda item. If an agenda item raises no legal issues, the County Attorney shall provide a statement to the Commission that they have fully reviewed the item and no further legal review is needed.
 - b. ~~If requested by a Commissioner, the legal review provided by the County Attorney shall include cites to all legal authority or other materials referenced in the legal review.~~
 - c. The County Attorney need not submit the legal review prior to a work session discussion of the agenda item, but must circulate the legal review to the Commissioners by not later than 5 p.m. on the Friday before the Commission meeting at which the item will be an action item on the Commission's agenda. Failure to provide a legal review by that deadline shall be deemed to be a determination by the County Attorney that no legal issues exist as to that agenda item.
 - d. In the event that the legal review requires additional time, the County Attorney shall inform the Commissioners by the Friday before the meeting.
4. Packet preparation and dissemination.
- a. The County Administrator shall assemble a Commission meeting packet, containing a copy of the agenda, all agenda items and all documents attached to each agenda item, except for those materials that are (i) copyrighted, unless written permission by the copyright holder is provided; (ii) proprietary; (iii) confidential; (iv) related to a closed session; or (v) intended as legal

communications. Such materials shall not be included in the general packet unless otherwise allowed by these bylaws or applicable law. Excluded materials shall be provided to the Commission under separate cover, marked “confidential”.

- b. The County Administrator shall deliver the agenda and packet to the Commissioners, County Attorney, County Clerk, and County Library not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting at which that agenda will be considered.
- c. The County Administrator shall post a copy of the agenda at the meeting location and on the State Public Meeting Notice website, and shall also post a copy of the complete agenda and packet (with the exception of excluded materials) on the County website.

J. Work Session Items and Procedure

- 1. The purpose of the Work Session is to allow the Commissioners to make an initial review of those proposed agenda items requiring an official action, identify issues or concerns regarding those items, make amendments to proposed resolutions or ordinances, and for non-controversial items to be moved to the Consent Agenda for expedited action.
- 2. The County Administrator shall review all proposed agenda items and shall place all items requiring official action by the Commission on the Work Session agenda for the next meeting.
- 3. During the Work Session at the next regular meeting, the Commission shall discuss each Work Session agenda item.
- 4. Amendments may be made to proposed resolutions or ordinances on the Work Session agenda by motion and majority vote.
- 5. If all Commissioners agree, any Work Session item may be moved to the Consent Agenda of a subsequent meeting for approval without further discussion. All other items shall be placed on the General Business section of the following meeting for full discussion and vote.
- 6. Specific issues concerning items not placed on the Consent Agenda during the Work Session shall be identified and referred to the appropriate County officials or staff for assistance in addressing those issues before the next meeting of the Commission.

K. Consent Agenda

- 1. The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to quickly process and dispose of noncontroversial matters by being adopted all at once.
- 2. All items on the Consent Agenda shall be considered without further discussion or

debate.

3. All items on the Consent Agenda shall be voted on in a single vote. The items on the Consent Agenda are approved by a simple majority vote.

3.4. The Consent Agenda may contain items that ratify time-sensitive actions previously taken by the County.

4.5. Any item may be removed from the Consent Agenda for the Commission to consider separately consideration as part of the General Business regular section of the agenda during the meeting by a majority vote of the Commission.

L. Meeting Location and Decorum

1. The meeting location of all Commission meetings shall be open to the public, with the exception of closed sessions.
2. All persons attending a Commission meeting shall behave in a respectful manner, shall only speak when first recognized by the Chair, shall refrain from interrupting the Commission or any other speaker who has been recognized by the Chair and shall behave in a way that does not disrupt the proceedings of the Commission. At the direction of the Chair, law enforcement may remove from the meeting any person causing disturbances or otherwise violating the law.

M. Voting

1. Approval of an Agenda Item To Pass Acts: Two (2) affirmative votes shall be necessary to pass any resolution, ordinance or act (motion).
2. Conflict of Interest: A Commissioner shall not vote where there is a conflict of interest defined by Utah Code section 67-16-9 and shall declare such conflict and recuse themselves. The Commissioner shall not debate the agenda matter from which she/he is recusing her/himself. Conflict of Interest: Where there is a conflict of interest as defined by U.C.A. 76-16-9, the Commissioner shall declare that conflict and decide if it warrants recusal from both the deliberations and the decision making process for that item.
3. Failure to Vote: A failure to vote by a Commissioner who is present at the meeting shall be treated as an abstention. A failure to vote by a Commissioner who is absent from the meeting for any reason shall be treated as an absence.
4. Leaving Seat: When a vote is commenced, no Commissioner shall leave until their vote has been recorded except in the case of personal emergency.

5. Change of Vote: A Commissioner may change their vote after the call for the vote has been completed and before announcement of the result, but not thereafter.
6. Termination of Discussion: Once a Commissioner calls for the question, discussion about the item ends. The Commission then votes on the item, and the Commission shall move to the next item of business with no further discussion.
7. Abstentions: Although it is the duty of every Commissioner to vote, they can abstain, as they cannot be compelled to vote.
87. Questions Affecting a Commissioner: Commissioners are permitted to vote for themselves for an office or other position to which Commissioners are generally eligible.

N. Motions

1. Making and Withdrawing: When a motion is made, the Chair shall call for a second. The Chair shall restate the motion upon request by any Commissioner. If the motion receives a second, the Chair has discretion to restate the motion after debate and before vote commences. If there is no second to the motion the motion shall die without further debate due to the lack of a second. A motion may not be withdrawn by the person making the motion without the consent of the majority of the Commission once it has been seconded. The Chair may request that the motion is submitted in written form prior to the motion being stated by the Chair. ~~The Chair may second a motion by another Commissioner.~~
 2. Chair's participation in making or seconding motions. If the Chair wishes to make an original motion, they shall temporarily transfer the responsibilities of the Chair to another Commissioner, make their motion, and then once the matter is concluded, receive back the Chair responsibilities. The Chair may second motions while still acting as Chair. Nothing in this section shall be construed as restricting the Chair's ability to fully participate in the legislative process.
2. Division of Motion: If the motion contains two (2) or more divisible propositions, the Chair may, and upon request of a Commissioner shall, divide the same.
3. Motions Out of Order: The Chair may not at any time permit a member to introduce an ordinance, resolution, or motion out of the regular order as set forth in the agenda unless a motion is made to take such item out of order and that motion is approved by majority vote. A proposed ordinance or resolution may also be moved by majority vote from the Work Meeting agenda to the Formal Meeting section of the agenda for action on the same day as the item was introduced on the Work Meeting agenda, so long as any changes made to the item are not so substantial as to necessitate re-noticing.
4. Superseding/Rescinding a Motion, Resolution, Order or Rule: A motion, resolution, order,

or rule that has been adopted or approved at ~~asome~~ previous meeting may be superseded ~~reseinded~~ by a subsequent official action of the Commission; ~~however, such rescission must be made by resolution. The effect of a rescission is that the prior motion, resolution, order or rule is treated as if it was never approved.~~

5. Reconsidering a Motion: A motion may be reconsidered at any time during the same meeting at which it was originally acted upon if the motion to reconsider is introduced by a Commissioner who had voted with the prevailing side and the motion is passed by a majority vote. Only after the motion to reconsider has been approved by the majority can the main motion be considered.
6. Postponing a Motion: Any item on the agenda may be postponed until the next meeting or a specific future date. A motion to postpone shall give best efforts to include the future time of consideration and reason for postponement. Any agenda item not postponed to a specific later date shall be automatically placed on the agenda of the next meeting of the Commission.
7. Tabling a Motion: Any item on the agenda may be tabled until later in the same meeting. A motion to table temporarily suspends further consideration or action on an agenda item until later in the meeting. A motion to bring back to the table shall be made to resume discussion on the item tabled. An item to be considered at a future meeting shall be postponed, rather than tabled.
8. Amending a Motion: Any main motion may be offered for amendment by a Commissioner after the main motion has been seconded and is under debate. The Commissioner who seconded the main motion must concur in the amendment.
9. Substituting a Motion: A motion may be made to substitute a different motion for the pending motion. If the motion to substitute fails, the Chair returns to the pending motion as originally read or made. If the motion to substitute passes, the question is now on the motion proposed for substitution and the original motion dies.
10. Robert's Rules of Order: Any specific questions regarding motions that are not addressed in these Policies and Procedures shall be determined by the edition of Robert's Rules of Order provided to the Commission by the County Administrator.

O. Reading and Passage of Resolutions and Ordinances

All proposed resolutions and ordinances are subject to the following requirements for approval:

1. Printed or Electronic Copies. In order to be considered, printed or electronic copies of the proposed resolution or ordinance shall be in the possession of the Commission not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting. Such copies may be delivered by hand or electronically.

2. Read Into Record. All resolutions and ordinances, except those on the Consent Agenda, may be fully read into the record of the Commission by the County Administrator or another County employee if so requested by the Chair.
3. Available to the Public: Copies of proposed resolutions shall be available to the public, when feasible, at the County Administrator's office and the Library not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the Commission convenes to take official action upon the resolution.
4. Effective Date of Ordinances: No ordinance passed by the Commission shall take effect within less than fifteen (15) days of its publication in accordance with UCA 17-53-208 unless authorized otherwise by state code, such as for emergencies or temporary land use regulations.
5. Amending a Resolution or Ordinance: Amendments of resolutions and ordinances shall be approved by a majority vote of the Commission and are subject to all of the provisions of this section.

P. Decorum and Debate

1. Being Recognized: When a Commissioner desires to speak or make a motion, the Commissioner shall address the Chair by stating, "Mr./Madam Chair". Upon being recognized by the Chair, the Commissioner may then address the Commission, staff or members of the public.
2. First Person Recognized: When more than one Commissioner addresses the Chair, the Chair shall name the person who is to speak, recognizing the person who first addressed the Chair. No other person may speak while the recognized Commissioner continues to hold the floor.
3. Interruptions: No Commissioner shall interrupt another, except when permitted by parliamentary procedure.
4. Decorum: No Commissioner shall indulge in personalities, attack the motives of Commissioner or use language tending to hold a Commissioner up to contempt or ridicule.
5. Debate with the Public: No Commissioner shall debate with the public or employees during meetings or workshops.
6. Limitation of Debate: In general, no Commissioner shall be allowed to speak more than once upon any one subject until all other Commissioners have had an opportunity to speak.

7. Electronic Devices: Use of electronic devices during a Commission meeting shall be limited to matters pertaining to the business of the meeting except in the case of personal emergency; such use is subject to the Open and Public Meetings Act (UCA 52-4) and GRAMA.
8. Leaving Chambers: No Commissioner shall leave the meeting location during a session without informing the Chair, except for short breaks or in the case of personal emergency.

Q. Participation by the Public

1. Employee/Public Recognized: No person shall speak unless recognized by the Chair.
2. Citizens to Be Heard: During the Citizens to Be Heard portion of the meeting, citizens desiring to speak shall address themselves to the Chair. Upon being recognized, they shall use the designated microphone stand, state their full name, address, who they represent if applicable, and state their subject matter.
3. No Interruptions: No person shall interrupt legislative proceedings.
4. Three-Minute Rule: No person of the public shall speak more than three (3) minutes except upon waiver by the Chair or on motion of the Commission.
5. Procedure: Orderly procedure requires that each member of the public shall proceed without interruption from the audience and shall retire when their time is up; that all statements shall be addressed to the Commission, and that there be no questioning or argument between individuals.
6. Questions: After being first recognized by the Chair, Commissioners and staff members may ask questions and make appropriate comments; however, no Commissioner should argue or debate an issue with the petitioner/member of the public.
7. No Assignment of Time: If there are several speakers on a matter, one person may not assign their time to another in an effort to increase the allowed speaking time. Individual citizens and citizen groups may select a person to make a presentation on their behalf, but each individual's speaking time will be limited to three minutes, subject to the discretion of the Chair or a vote of the Commission.
8. Orderly Conduct: Citizens attending meetings shall observe rules of propriety, decorum and good conduct. Unauthorized remarks and similar demonstrations shall not be permitted by the Chair who may direct the removal of offenders from the from the meeting.

R. Public Hearings

1. Posting of Public Hearing: All public hearings shall be published in the local newspaper of record and posted in accordance with Utah State Code, San Juan County and local ordinances, as applicable.
2. Staff Presentation: The appropriate staff shall make a presentation to the Commission and the public on behalf of the public hearing matter.
3. Applicant Speaks: Regarding Planning and Zoning issues, the applicant shall be invited the first to speak to the Commissioners after the staff has made a presentation. Applicants may appear in person or be represented by legal or other counsel. Applicant statements shall be limited to ten (10) minutes or as otherwise indicated by the Chair.
4. Questions: Commissioners may direct questions to the applicant and/or staff in order to bring out relevant facts, circumstances or conditions affecting the case and may call for questions from the staff.
5. Opening Hearings: The Chair shall open the hearing and invite the public to the podium for comment. All public participation shall be subject to the Decorum and Debate provisions of Section Q.
6. Closing Hearings: Following public comment, if any, during the public hearing the Chair announces conclusion of this portion of the public hearing, stating that the public hearing will remain open for written public comment until 5PM on the date that is six (6) days before the next regularly scheduled meeting (or other specified date). The Chair further states that the matter will be considered at the next regularly scheduled meeting (or other specified date). A Commissioner may move to suspend these rules, by a majority vote, to take action and vote on the matter immediately. If the motion to take action is approved, the Commission can then move to consider the item.
7. Written Comments: Written comments may be submitted to the County Administrator's office for the record at the hearing for up to 5PM six (6) days before the next regularly scheduled Commission meeting. The County Administrator shall ensure that all on-time written comments are made a part of the Commission packet for the Commission meeting at which the issue is to be considered. At the close of each public hearing the County Administrator shall ensure that all on-time written comments have been forwarded to the Clerk's Office for public record.
8. Late Comments: Written comments are considered late any time after 5PM six (6) days before the next regularly scheduled Commission meeting that follows the public hearing, unless a different date is specified by the Chair. Late comments (whether received by Commission staff by email, mail or delivery) will be forwarded electronically by Commission staff to each Commissioner. However, late comments will not be made

available by Commission staff for the Commission meeting nor made a part of the online archived public record.

S. Amendment of Policies and Procedures

1. Amending the Policies and Procedures: No policy or procedure of the Commission shall be amended except by majority vote. Consideration of proposed amendments shall be held during regularly scheduled meeting(s).
2. Resolution Required: Amendment of these Policies and Procedures shall be through resolution. A redlined document shall be archived electronically by the County Clerk identifying all changes for approval.

#####